
June 27, 2015 @  1820 hrs.: 
 
On Saturday, June 27, 2015, PFC West and PFC Giles responded to McDonald’s for a 
report of an overdose.  Upon arrival, the reporting person advised her boyfriend had 
snorted five bags of heroin and became pale and unresponsive.  Officers found the male 
subject seated in the driver’s seat of vehicle unresponsive, blue lips and no pulse.  
Officers began to give CPR for approximately three minutes, after which they detected a 
pulse and the subject began breathing on his own.  NCC Paramedics administered Narcan 
which made him conscious and alert.  He was then transported to Christiana Hospital for 
evaluation.  
 
July 9, 2015 @  0100 hrs.: 
 
On Thursday, July 9, 2015, Ptlm. Wingate and Cpl. Davis responded to the unit block of 
Elsmere Boulevard for a burglary in progress.   Prior to officer’s arrival the suspects fled 
out the back door in an unknown direction of travel.  A K-9 track yielded negative 
results.  The owner could only describe the suspects as two black males.  The owner 
fought the intruder after they broke in through the rear door.  There are no suspects at this 
time.  
  
July 9, 2015 @  1915 hrs.: 
 
While addressing quality of life issues, EPD Officers developed information that D-1 
Lonnie White was selling prescription pills from his residence located in the 200 block of 
Dumont Rd.  On July 09, 2015, Elsmere police officers observed White commit a traffic 
violation and conducted a vehicle stop.  Officers searched the vehicle and found 90 
Metaxaloane pills. These pills are muscle relaxers and were not prescribed to the suspect.  
 
Officers obtained a search warrant for White’s residence.  Officers executed the search 
warrant and seized an additional 16 Oxycodone 30mg pills, 5 hypodermic needles, and 
hundreds of used heroin bags.  
 
White was charged with possession of controlled substance without a 
prescription, possession of non-controlled substance without a prescription, 
and possession of drug paraphernalia.    
 
 
July 18, 2015 @  1925 hrs.: 
 
 
On Saturday, July 18, 2015, Corporal Davis observed Defendant Jonathan Hall commit a 
traffic violation on N. Dupont Road.  Cpl. Davis attempted to pull Hall over, but Hall fled 
at a high rate of speed.  Hall lost control of his vehicle while making a turn onto Route 
141 from Faulkland Road and crashed into a ditch located at the Snowden Cottage 
Facility. Hall was observed running from his vehicle carrying two large bags. Hall was 
observed hiding the bags and then he continued to run from Cpl. Davis. After a lengthy 



foot pursuit, Cpl. Davis was able to apprehend Hall in the Greenville apartments located 
on Route141. Officers located the two bags that Hall stashed on Snowden Cottage 
property. Officers recovered the following items from the bag: 
 
Mossberg .22 Caliber Rifle  
Ruger 9mm Handgun 
Ruger .380 Handgun 
Bullet proof vest 
Approximately 600 rounds of ammunition 
 
Hall also had several pills in his pocket without a prescription.   All three of the seized 
weapons were loaded.  Hall was charged with 3 counts of Possession of a Firearm by a 
Person Prohibited, Disregarding a Police Officer’s Signal, Resisting Arrest, traffic 
violations, and Possession of a Controlled/Counterfeit Substance. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
July 22nd  & 23rd, 2015: 
 
As a result of a month long drug investigation, the Elsmere Police executed the following 
two search warrants: 
 
On July 22, 2015, Elsmere Officers responded to the unit block on Boston Place, New 
Castle, DE, and executed a search warrant. D-1; Wayne Wells, II was arrested after 
officers found marijuana and two shotguns in his bedroom. Wells II was charged with 
Possession of Marijuana and two counts of Possession of a Firearm by a Person 



Prohibited.  D-2; Wayne Wells, III, was arrested after he was found in a vehicle with 
drug paraphernalia and $3,224.00 U.S.C.   
 
D-1(Wells, II) was given a $10,000.00 secured bail which was posted. D-2 (Wells, III) 
was released after being issued a criminal summons.  
 
On July 23, 2015, Elsmere Officers responded to the 400 block of Hillside Avenue which 
is another residence being used by D-1 and D-2.  Officers located more marijuana in the 
residence and also seized $45,125.00 U.S.C. from a vehicle in front of the residence. D-3; 
Amber Czech was arrested for Possession of Marijuana and Endangering the Welfare of a 
Child.  
 
D-3, Czech was released on a $600.00 unsecured bond.  D-2, Wells, III was released after 
he posted the $850.00 secured bail.  

 

 
 



 
 

                
July 27, 2015 @ 1500 hrs.: 
 
 
On Monday, July 27, 2015, Elsmere PD officers executed a search warrant in the unit 
block of Hempstead Drive, Newark.  The search resulted in two subjects being arrested 
for drug violations and $1,350.00 U.S.C. seized. 
 
July 31, 2015 @ 1400 hrs.: 
 
On Friday, July 31, 2015, at approximately 2:00 p.m. Elsmere Police responded to Rt. 2 
E/B at Oak Avenue for an unconscious person in the roadway.   
 
Upon arrival officers located a 68 year-old male who was unresponsive and receiving 
CPR by medical personnel.  The victim was transported to Christiana ER where he later 
died from the injuries he sustained. 
 
The preliminary investigation indicates two bicyclists were traveling E/B & W/B on the 
shoulder of Rt. 2 E/B at Oak Avenue when they collided with one another. 
 


